ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 19, 2003
3:16 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative David CGuttenberg

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Harry Crawford

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 111
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Regulatory
Comm ssion of Al aska; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 119

"An Act permtting grants to certain regulated public utilities
for water quality enhancenent projects and water supply and
wast ewat er systens."

- MOVED CSHB 119(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 120
"An  Act excluding service contracts from regulation as
i nsurance; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 120(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 111
SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND REGULATORY COWM SSI ON OF ALASKA
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
02/ 19/ 03 0250 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 19, 2003



02/ 19/ 03
02/ 19/ 03
02/ 19/ 03
02/ 19/ 03
03/ 10/ 03
03/10/03

03/17/03
03/17/03

03/ 19/ 03

0250
0250
0250
0250

BILL: HB 119

NN AN AN AN N

I II TIIZIZIZ

~—

REFERRALS

L&C, FIN

FN1: ( CED)

GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
REFERRED TO LABOR & COMMERCE
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
Heard & Held

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

<Bi || Hearing Postponed to
3/ 19>

L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

SHORT Tl TLE: WATER/ SEVER/ WASTE GRANTS TO UTI LI TI ES
REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 24/ 03

02/ 24/ 03
02/ 24/ 03
03/19/03

Jrn- Page
0286

0286
0286

BILL: HB 120

I3z 2

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
L&C, FIN
REFERRED TO LABOR & COVMERCE
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

SHORT TI TLE: SERVI CE CONTRACT SALES ARE NOT | NSURANCE
REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 24/ 03

02/ 24/ 03
03/ 05/ 03
03/ 05/ 03

03/ 12/ 03
03/12/03

03/19/03

Jrn- Page
0286

0286

W TNESS REG STER

DAVE HARBOUR, Chair
Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska (RCA)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE

I Iz 23T 2

~

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
L&C
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( L&C)
L&C AT 4:00 PM CAPI TOL 17
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( L&C)
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

March 19, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke about his new position as chair of
the RCA during the HB 111 hearing and answered questions on HB
119.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As the sponsor, testified on HB 119 and HB
120.

DAVI D LEONE, Speci al Assi stant

Mayor's O fice

Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 119, explaining how
service areas in a second-class borough turn to private
utilities for help in operati ng wastewater services.

KARA MORI ARI TY, President and CEO

G eat er Fairbanks Chanber of Conmerce

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 119 and
encouraged broadening it beyond water and waste water utilities
to all privately-owned utilities.

ANDY WARW CK, Chairman of the Board

Fai r banks Sewer and Water

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Supported HB 119, explaining that the
utility's ratepayers benefit from the conpany's access to state
grants.

JI M STRANDBERG, Commi ssi oner

Regul at ory Conm ssi on of Al aska (RCA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Lauded HB 119's concept of giving nore
utilities access to grant noney to build infrastructure but
cautioned against pressuring the RCA to regulate snall
utilities.

DAN EASTON, Director

Facility Construction and Qperation

Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 119, answered
guestions about DEC s nethod of classifying small water systens.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 19, 2003



RYNNI EVA MOSS, St aff

to Representative John Coghi l

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 120.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-23, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:16 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Dahlstrom and CGuttenberg were present at the
call to order. Representati ve Rokeberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 111- EXTEND REGULATORY COW SSI ON OF ALASKA

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 111, "An Act extending the term nation date of
the Regulatory Conmission of Alaska; and providing for an
effective date."

CHAI RVAN ANDERSON infornmed the conmittee that he was assigning
HB 111 to a subcommttee consi sti ng of hi nsel f and
Representati ves Dahl strom and Guttenberg. He announced that the
subconm ttee would neet next Thursday, March 27, 2003. He
requested that interested parties provide a one-page position
statenent identifying their suggested changes.

Nunber 0152

DAVE HARBOUR, Chair, Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA),
t hanked the conmmttee for its role in the confirmation process.
He di scussed the circunstances under which he took the position
as chair of the RCA. He commented on the RCA's dedicated staff
of specialists. M. Harbour related that he feels a special
sense of mssion from the |egislature and governor because one
appoi nted him and the other confirmed him He pointed out that
after sone 2,000 orders since the RCA was created in 1999, only
about 15 mmjor appeals have occurred. Virtually all of those
appeals have been sustained by the court system wth the
exception of one which was turned back for a procedural reason

M . Harbour enphasized the inportance of RCA's comrunication
wth the legislature, the admnistration, as well as the
regul ated community. He encouraged di al ogue about inproving the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 19, 2003



processes effecting the public interest and maxim zing the RCA' s
ef ficiencies.

CHAI R ANDERSON reiterated that HB 111 will be held and heard in
subconmi tt ee next week.

HB 119- WATER/ SEVER/ WASTE GRANTS TO UTI LI TI ES

Nunmber 502

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 119, "An Act permtting grants to certain
regulated public utilities for water quality enhancenent
projects and water supply and wastewater systens.”

Nunmber 0538

REPRESENTATI VE JACK COGHILL, Alaska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 119, noted that Section 3 is the heart of the bill

Nunmber 0528

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noved to adopt conmttee substitute
(CS) HB 119, Version 23-LS0617\D, Craver, 3/12/03, as the
wor ki ng docunent. There being no objection, Version D was
before the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL testified that this legislation will give
certain groups that provide water and sewer services the ability
to access matching grants, regardless of whether they are

publicly or privately owned. However, these groups do need to
fall wunder the jurisdiction of the Regulatory Comm ssion of
Al aska (RCA). He said this provision is found on page 2, lines
15-18, in Section 3, which reads: "(i) A public water and sewer

utility is eligible for a grant for projects described in (b)(1)
- (3) of this section if its rates are regulated by the
Regul at ory Comm ssi on of Al aska under AS 42.05."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expl ained that HB 119 attenpts to provide
equity. A privately owned utility in Fairbanks was originally

publicly owned; when the conpany nade the transition, it no
|l onger qualified for state nmatching grants. He noted that
private utilities serve the same custoners as public utilities
and have the sane needs. A key question is whether [such

financial assistance] increases the profit for the private
utility or whether it helps the ratepayers. He said this bil
allows the utility to expand or do maintenance w thout passing

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 19, 2003



the cost onto the custoners. For exanple, a nunicipal utility
can use grant noney to expand, and the ratepayers receive the
benefi t [of the expansion without a corresponding rate
i ncr ease] . He said under HB 119, the grant would not enlarge
the asset base of the for-profit wutility. The RCA would not
calculate the grant in adjusting the conpany's rate. He added
that there may other smaller [privately-owned] conpanies that
provide simlar services, for exanple, village safe water
contracts.

Number 0811

DAVI D LEONE, Special Assistant, Myor's Ofice, Fairbanks North
Star Borough, testified that this second-class borough has
limted powers to provide water and wastewater facilities.
These utilities can be provided through citizen-approved service
areas, of which there are two in the borough. Neither of those
service areas can afford the cost of providing quality utility
functions, nor can they afford nmjor necessary inprovenents.
This has resulted in sone health and safety issues that nust be
addressed, he said. There is one service area in particular
that has already raised its property taxes to the maxinmm
allowable mll rate in order to inprove the wastewater process.
The citizens turned to a privately held water and wastewater
corporation to provide sone support. He admtted that
unfortunately, as the borough tries to privatize sone of the
services, inequities in state statute [cone to light], in this
case, privately owned utilities not being able to obtain state
grants. These grants allow public utilities to inprove the
existing infrastructure wthout placing the burden on the
ratepayer. Under this bill, the grants woul d cover inprovenents
that are currently "transparent"” to the consunmer, that is, the
cost is now passed through to the consuner. Under HB 119, the
conpany's doll ar value would not be increased by the
i nprovenents, a factor prevented by the RCA M. Leone
concl uded that the borough supports the passage of HB 119.

Nunmber 0968

KARA MORI ARITY, President and CEOQ, G eater Fairbanks Chanber of
Commerce, stated that the chanber passed a resolution of support
for HB 119. She explained that the chanber supports this
| egi sl ati on because publicly owned wutilities have access to
state grant funds for infrastructure devel opnent while privately

owned wutilities do not. In this regard, privately owned
utilities and their ratepayers are penalized because it costs
nore to develop their infrastructure. If a privately held

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 19, 2003



utility was eligible for a grant, according to the RCA the
investors in the private utility would not profit from the use
of those grants; the financial gain would have to be passed on
to the rate payers as a cost-savi ng neasure.

Nunmber 1058

M5. MORIARITY explained that alnost all the utilities in the
Fai rbanks area are privately owned or owned by a cooperative.
Fai rbanks no longer has any nunicipally- or governnent-owned
utilities. The chanber board nmenbers indicated that they would

like to see HB 119 expanded to allow all privately-owned
utilities regulated by the RCA to apply for grants, not just
water and wastewater utilities. She nentioned that a small,

privately owned Natural Gas Conpany faces an enornous hurdle in
expanding its lines in to nore areas in Fairbanks. She said it
has been a huge challenge and investnent for that conpany to
build its infrastructure.

M5. MORIARITY noted that giving both privately- and publicly-
owned utilities the sanme access for grants for infrastructure
devel opnent would pronote economc devel opnent, al | owi ng
expansion to custoners that are not currently connected to a
utility system She said that there are lots in the borough
that are only 10 to 15 mnutes from downtown that are not
connected to the water system She concluded that the chanber
supports the bill and encourages broadening it to allow all
privately owned utilities regulated by the RCA to have access to
state grants.

Nunber 1182

ANDY WARW CK, Chairman of the Board, Fairbanks Sewer and Water,
explained that this conmpany was fornmed in 1996 to acquire the
Cty of Fairbanks' water and wastewater utility. At that tine,
the city was participating only mninmally in grant funding
because there was not nuch funding avail able. Now grants for
wat er and sewer projects appear to be increasing in inportance.
Because Fairbanks has privatized its utilities, it is the only
community in the state that is ineligible to participate. He
noted that HB 119 renedies this inequity by allowing privately
owned utilities that are regulated by the RCA to apply for
grants under AS 46.03.030(b) [Environnental Conservation]. This
puts Fairbanks ratepayers in the sanme position as ratepayers in
every other city in the state. He stressed that under RCA
regul ation, all the econom c benefits of these grants are passed
onto the ratepayers; the utilities get no rate of return on the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 19, 2003



plant, or any depreciation expense, nor can the rates be
i ncreased. Economi c regulation [by the RCA] essentially nakes
his conpany economically neutral wunder this bill, and the
benefits to the ratepayer are obvious. He said that HB 119 w ||
reduce the burden to ratepayers for inprovenents nade to water

and wastewater systens. It will also increase the ability of
the wutility to expand its water and wastewater systens to
include famlies and businesses that currently use well and

septic systens.
Nunber 1282

MR WARWCK comented that the wvast majority of Fairbanks
residents are not hooked up to public water, which results in
sanitary problens that could be resolved by connecting them to
the utility system

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that the current statute that
covers nunicipalities puts a cap of 50 percent on eligible costs
for a municipality and, if HB 119 passes, utility service for
popul ati ons over 5,000 people. He asked if the 50 percent cap
is a problem

MR WARWCK explained that he wants his wutility and his

ratepayers to be treated the same as other communities. The
change wouldn't benefit or penalize the wutility; it's held
neutral . There are benefits to a utility of having happy

rat epayers, for exanple, when the utility goes before the RCA
for a rate increase.

Nunmber 1395

JI M STRANDBERG, Conmi ssioner, Regulatory Conmm ssion of Al aska,
described how the RCA regulates small water and sewer systens in
the state. He said he agreed with M. Warwi ck that grant funds
in Alaska are particularly inportant to reduce the cost of
services to the ratepayers, especially in such capital-intensive
utilities as water and sewer systens. He acknow edged that in
Fai r banks, capital needs are particularly high for |arge network
systens, given the permafrost conditions and high operating
costs.

MR. STRANDBERG noted that in HB 119, any utility that is rate-
regul ated by the RCA would be eligible to apply for a grant. As
a result, many of the small wutilities which the RCA does not
currently regulate would conme to RCA [in order to qualify for
these grants]. A legislative audit recommended over a year ago

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 19, 2003



that the RCA determ ne which classes of small water and sewer

systens it wll regulate. He said the RCA has held citizen
advi sory neetings and taken extensive public comrent; it has
devel oped regulations for these systens and will soon accept

public conment on the regul ations.

MR. STRANDBERG explained that the public sentinent is that the
RCA should not regulate the rates of many of the smaller
utilities but find another way to assure ratepayers that they
are being treated fairly. He said nmany people have reconmended
that certain classes of utilities be exenpted totally from RCA

regul ati on. Anot her type of reduced regulation would allow
utilities to register with the RCA and agree to conply with a
nodel tariff. In a third class, the RCA would rate-regul ate the
| arger utilities, although no break has been set between these
| evel s yet. He said it's likely that the actual universe of

rate-requl ated water and sewer utilities may not be very | arge.

MR. STRANDBERG noted, however, if the RCA elected to rate
regulate all the utilities, the statistics are daunting. There
are 400 water systens and 250 sewer systens which qualify as
utilities under the statute. If the RCA chose to rate-regulate
all of those, the RCA would be faced wth regulating an
additional 237 water utilities and 136 sewer utilities. He said
that the RCA prepared an indetermnate fiscal note on HB 119
because staff doesn't know how many utilities will be rate-
regul ated [under the proposed regul ations]. He summari zed that
RCA lauds the bill with its goal of increasing access to grant
noney to build infrastructure. However, he cautioned
| egislators to anticipate the inpact on the RCA as it attenpts
to lighten its regulatory |l oad anong smaller utilities.

Nunmber 1655

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether a large nunber of
private utilities mght conme forward seeking these water and
sewer grants.

MR. STRANDBERG replied that depends on the ease of application
for the grant funds; that wll reveal how many wutilities
approach the RCA to be regulated. |If the noney is easy to get,
he suggested that the RCA coul d be del uged.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked for the definition of a public
utility.

Number 1735

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 19, 2003



MR. STRANDBERG replied that the RCA statute defines public
utility in AS 42.05.990 (4)(c) as including every corporation,
whet her public, cooperative or otherw se, conpany, individual,
or association of individuals, that owns, operates, nanages, or
controls any plant, pipeline or system furnishing, water, steam
or sewer service to the public for conpensation. The public is
a group of 10 or nore customers. He said that public utility is
wel | defined, and the definition is fairly inclusive.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG not ed the | anguage on page 2, lines 9-
14, in which a utility serving nore than 5,000 people under
certain circunstances receives a grant of 60 percent of the
eligible costs. He asked whether this 60 percent figure is high
enough.

MR. STRANDBERG replied that the dynamc of grant funding in
Fairbanks is different than in rural comunities. Wth the
matching fund requirenent, it wll be highly variable whether
the utilities can raise the necessary natch. He comented that
it's nore likely that larger communities will seek this funding.

Nunber 1846

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about the total number  of
certificated water systens under the RCA

MR. STRANDBERG replied that there are 400 water systens and 250
sewer systens that quality as a utility.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG not ed t hat t he Depart nent of
Environnental Conservation [DEC] categorizes the water systens
by size. He asked if the RCA uses simlar categories.

MR. STRANDBERG replied that the two agencies' categories share

sone simlarities. The RCA statute refers to 10 or nore
custoners being a utility, whereas DEC regulations refer to 15
or nore custoners. The vast mpjority of DEC water systens are
Class A

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he's seeking a solution to M.
Strandberg's concerns about a "gold rush on his shop." He
explained that he is trying to clarify whether the RCA regul ates
all three levels of DEC utilities.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 19, 2003



MR. STRANDBERG replied that the RCA and DEC categories are very
different systenms, but he said that he couldn't renenber the
exact DEC cl asses.

Nunmber 1983

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG confirned that the RCA statutory
authority is over utilities serving 10 or nore people. He asked
if RCA has any other criteria for which utilities it regul ates.

MR. STRANDBERG r esponded that DEC tends to focus on the [health]
risk of the water quality and the nunber of custoners. He noted
that RCA qualifications tend to deal with ratepayers' financial
concerns, such as whether they are represented by a |[ocal
governnment unit so they don't need rate regulation. Al so, the
RCA classifications recognize that regulating very small
utilities doesn't help the ratepayer because of its expense.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whi ch cl asses RCA regul at es.

MR. STRANDBERG replied that the RCAis in the process of putting
those cl asses together, drafting the regulations now in response
to extensive public comment.

Nunmber 2068

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether the RCA currently rate-
regul ates the 400 water systens.

MR. STRANDBERG replied that currently, the RCA regulates all
water utilities that are not nunicipal systens. He confirned
that all 400 water systens are currently rate-regulated by the
RCA.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether there are unregul ated
muni cipal utilities.

VR. STRANDBERG replied that there are approxinmately 100
muni ci pally owned water and 70 nunicipally owned sewer utilities
that are not regul ated by the RCA

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that he may have inadvertently
excluded nmunicipal utilities from having access to these
mat chi ng grants. The bill states on page 2, lines 16-17, that
public utilities nust be regulated by the RCA in order to be
eligible for these matching grants.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 19, 2003



Nunber 2145

MR. STRANDBERG referred to the |anguage on page 1, lines [13-

14], subsection (e), "A grant under this section to a
municipality or public utility eligible under (i) of this
section...” He said he interprets this as [including nunicipa

utilities not regulated by the RCA].
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL t hanked him for that clarification.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he appreciates the RCA follow ng
the legislative audit recommendation to renove snmall water
utilities from RCA regulation. He asked if the conmttee
limted the eligible rate-regul ated water and sewer utilities in
HB 119 to those currently regulated by the RCA, would that help
[protect the RCA from being overwhelnmed by requests to be
regul at ed] ?

MVR. STRANDBERG responded that it would depend on the
avai lability of funds and on whether other funds could be used
to meet the matching requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether there are additional water
and sewer utilities, beyond the 400 water and 250 sewer
utilities, that would ask to be regulated [in order to qualify
for these grants].

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if the commttee needs to change sonething
inthe bill to cover this other group.

MR. STRANDBERG responded that HB 119 currently makes any utility
that is rate-regulated by the RCA eligible [to apply for a
grant]. He said there are currently 21 economcally regul ated
water utilities in the state now. Those woul d be eligible [for
grants under HB 119] if the RCA inplenmented its [draft]
regul ati ons.

Number 2299

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d he assunmes that because RCA has the
authority to rate-regulate all 400 water utilities, the
utilities wuld qualify for grants wunder this bill. He

reiterated that RCA has the authority to regulate those snall
water utilities serving 10 or nore people.

MR. STRANDBERG agreed and said that if the wutilities are
economcally regulated, they need to file a tariff with the RCA

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 19, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there are systens that are not
econonmi cal ly regul ated now.

Number 2334

MR. STRANDBERG said that a significant nunber of the water and
sewer utilities are not regulated because they have never
approached t he RCA

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how many water wutilities are
currently regul ated by RCA.

MR. STRANDBERG replied that the RCA currently regulates 21 water
utilities.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG confirmed that only those utilities that
have approached the RCA and asked for economc regulation are
currently certified as econom cally regul ated now.

TAPE 03-23, SIDE B
Number 2357

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whet her these other [400 water and
250 sewer] utilities have filed no tariffs with the RCA

MR. STRANDBERG stated that is correct. He said the reason for
the legislative audit [reconmendation] is that many snal
organi zations in small comunities have never approached the
RCA. He added that it has been a significant question of how
the RCA should regulate [these utilities] to protect the public
safety.

Nunmber 2336

CHAI R ANDERSON asked the sponsor if he would like to |ook at
these technical questions and bring the bill back to commttee
for consideration at the next neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL replied that the technical question is
[how many wutilities RCA regulates now and how many wll it
regulate in the future]. He said there is no technical question
about how the bill works. The bill has a referral to the House
Fi nance Standing Conmittee, and that commttee could [review the
nunber of wutilities that would be eligible]. He said he would
like to see the bill nove [today] if this commttee supports the
policy [of grants to privately-held utilities].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 19, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he remains concerned about who is
really going to be eligible [to apply for these grants]. He
said he thought he could anmend the bill to limt it to those who
are currently regulated [by the RCA] but he's not sure what that

woul d nean. The RCA trying to neet the recommendation of the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Conmttee by limting the nunber of
small utilities that it regulates seenms to work at cross

purposes to HB 119, he said.
Number 2263

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said this bill would allow [utilities to
apply for grants] based on how they are certified under the
RCA' s tier system

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that if the bill included only
those 21 water systens currently regulated [by the RCA], many
smal | water systenms wouldn't qualify under HB 119.

Nunber 2248

DAVE HARBOUR, Chair, Regul atory Comm ssion of Al aska), described
the problemof timng. A legislative audit reconmended that the
RCA limt the regulation of small wutilities so that regulation
costs could be mnimzed and public safety maintained. Yet, he
poi nted out, HB 119 presents an opportunity for inprovenents to
many small utilities without cost to their ratepayers. He said
Representative Rokeberg is on point. If the sponsor and the
commttee passes HB 119 on to the finance commttee, the RCA
would supply information [to answer these questions], even
though the RCA is still developing its regul ations. RCA staff
anti ci pated having those regul ati ons conpl eted by sumrer.

COMM SSI ONER HARBOUR noted that the [challenge] is to wite the
definition [of rate-regulated utilities] so that those who want
to take advantage of grants may do so and so that there's the
appropriate reporting [to the RCA] of the grant noney. He al so
noted the commttee's goal to include those utilities that w sh
mnimal regulation. That's the |anguage the RCA and the sponsor
will have to work on, he said

Nunber 2172
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned that the real problem here is

defining which utilities qualify. He noted that HB 119 uses the
DEC statute to define wutilities because it has an existing

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 19, 2003



system in place. That mght narrow the scope a bit, he said
but the question becones a policy issue--to what degree does the

| egislature want to limt wutilities [from applying for grant
funds]. For exanple, in urban Anchorage, there are 3,000 people
on well water; [their water systens will be inpacted] by the

2006 target date in the federal Cean Water Act, which changes
the standards for arsenic. He said he hopes these small private
wat er systenms would qualify for these grants. But there is a
problem wth the unintended inpact of the RCA's new direction
[ of reducing the nunber of utilities it regul ates].

Nunmber 2084

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that HB 119 is placed under the
DEC title, so perhaps the bill should focus on DEC s definition
of small utilities.

COMM SSI ONER HARBOUR agreed with this idea.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he is willing to have the bill held
in commttee while that idea is explored.

Nunmber 2063

CHAIR ANDERSON said the bill can be brought back before the
commttee as soon as the sponsor is ready.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG suggested that any changes in the

bill's | anguage should avoid conflicts [wth the RCA's statute].
Number 2033

DAN EASTON, Director, Facility Construction and Operation
Department  of Envi r onnment al Conservati on, in response to
Representative Rokeberg, explained how DEC categorizes the
smaller water systens. He said the different «classes of
drinking water systens are subject to different regulatory
requirenents. These classes don't have anything to do wth
DEC s grant program The Cdass A water system serves 25

residents or nore per day; the Cass B serves 25 nonresidents,
for exanple, in a restaurant; a Cass C system serves |ess than
25 peopl e. There is no alignment between RCA and DEC
classifications because of the different purposes of these
schenes.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 19, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked how many systens fall in each
cat egory.

MR. EASTON replied that there are approximately 650 water
systens in the Cass A In conmmenting on the difference in
nunbers between the two agencies, he said RCA is interested in
wat er systens that charge a rate for the water, whereas DEC is
interested in all drinking water systens.

Nunber 1973

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL confirned that a hotel conplex's water
system was an exanple of a system that didn't charge for its
wat er .

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the information on the DEC
classifications does not help [the commttee resolve the

probl em . He said there's only so nuch grant noney avail able.
He pondered whether the sponsor could design sone Kkind of
criteria rather than using economc regulation [by RCA]. The

criteria of a regulated rate is not sufficient because it is too
br oad.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he wanted to nake the criteria broad
so there would be sonme conpetition at the grant level. He said
that grant awards w il be based on both the ability to match
[grant noneys] and the ability to perform He said he realized
that there would be different classes of regulated groups
[ conpeting]. He said he does not believe he is going crossw se
with the RCA but is willing to hold the bill over for that
di scussi on.

Number 1864

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the fix is to amend this bill to
qualify those who are rate-regulated or who qualify for rate
regulation as a "date certain;" that would not affect the
outcone of the pending RCA regulations. That way, RCA wouldn't
get a rush of people into their office; those utilities already
qualify wunder the <current definitions. By wusing a "date
certain,” the Ilegislature avoids the problem of unintended
consequences of this bill

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded that then there would be a
tiered qualification that was broad until RCA regulations were
finalized, and he said he did not |ike that option. He said
he'd rather leave [the field of potential applicants] broad; he

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 19, 2003



does not anticipate a rush [for grants], given the economc
condition of Al aska.

Nunber 1802

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG confirned that the nunber of interested
applicants [anong utilities] would be self-limting, [determ ned
by whether] the utility wanted to be regulated by the RCA He
said this would force small wutilities into rate-regulation [by
t he RCA].

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL said that would be part of the narket-
driven approach for any community that would apply for a grant.
He said he was willing to discuss this further with the RCA
whi ch coul d be done in the next commttee of referral.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Easton about the 60 percent
match for systens that incorporate resource recovery [per the
| anguage on page 2, lines 13-14]. He asked if there would be
any benefit to having this 60 percent rate higher.

Nunber 1724
MR. EASTON noted that this language is an old provision that

applies to solid waste projects and allows for the state to pay
60 percent instead of 50 percent of a project's cost as a way to

entice solid waste systenms to do recycling. Privately owned
solid waste processing systems would not qualify for grants
under this bill. In Section 3, page 2, lines 15-18, the

reference to projects described under (b)(1)-(3) does not
i nclude solid waste processing.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the sponsor's goal is to namke
[the field] as broad as possible and let the conpetitive grant
process winnow out [a large nunber of applicants]. But he
encouraged Representative Coghill to consider RCA's offer to see
how to avoid a "run on the bank."

Number 1645

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report CSHB 119, Version 23-
LS0617\D, Craver, 3/12/03, from comittee wth individua
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying indeterm nate fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 119(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standi ng Committee.

HB 120- SERVI CE CONTRACT SALES ARE NOT | NSURANCE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 19, 2003



Number 1613

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 120, "An Act excluding service contracts from
regul ation as insurance; and providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 1598

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved that the commttee adopt the
proposed comrittee substitute (CS) to HB 120, Version 23-
LS0537\1, Ford, 3/19/03, as the working docunent. There being
no objection, Version | was before the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG related that [Version | addresses] all
the commttee's questions. Furthernore, the legislation has a
zero fiscal note that was prepared by the committee.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN related his understanding that this
| egi slation protects any licensed realtor providing a hone
warranty in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHILL, Al aska State Legislature, as the
sponsor of HB 120, deferred to of ficials from the
adm ni strati on.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that [Version 1] clearly
does what Representative Lynn understood, which is why [the

| anguage on page 2, lines 23-25] is included. Fur t her nor e,
underwriters would still pay the premium tax under Section 1
| anguage.

Nunmber 1484

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska

State Legislature, said she concurred with Representative Lynn's
understanding that a realtor could sell a home warranty and not
have to have a license to sell insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out that Section 2, [paragraph
(h)(2), page 2, lines 23-25] attenpts to clarify that.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said, "My wunderstanding is on hone
warranty underwiting, that [subparagraph (e)(1)(C in Section
1, page 2, lines 5-8 is controlling, ... notwthstanding
[ subparagraph (e)(2)(E)] below, 'where a hone warranty, except

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 19, 2003



as described in (1)(C of this subsection,' is excluded as found
in (1) (C above."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL deferred to the representative of the
adm nistration. He noted the need on page 2, line 13 to delete
"or" because it isn't necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that home warranties are not
excluded [from oversight by the Division of Insurance] per the
| anguage on page 2, Iline 17. Therefore, [conpanies that
underwrite] home warranties still pay the prem um tax, except if
the [honme warranty] 1is a conponent part of a home wunder
[ subparagraph (e)(1)(C in Section 1]. Represent ati ve Rokeberg
clarified that the hone warranty is not excluded from paynent of
prem um tax because it is an underwitten item But [ paragraph
(h)(2)] of Section 2 excludes the [seller of the warranty] from
being licensed in order to sell [the home warranty]. He said
for the record that he wanted to show that sone service
contracts could cover conponent parts wthout intending to be
home warranties. So, a [conpany underwiting] a honme warranty
woul d still pay a premumtax, but a [conpany offering a service
contract] on a washer and dryer conponent part would not [pay a
prem umtax] .

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that the sponsor seens to concur wth
Represent ati ve Rokeberg's comments.

Nunmber 1316

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG inquired as to why Chair Anderson had
witten the fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned that statute specifies that if
the departnment doesn't provide a fiscal note, then a commttee
of referral can do so.

Nunber 1291

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report CSHB 120 out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wi t hdrew the aforenentioned notion and
noved that the commttee adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1 as
follows: page 2, line 13, after "serviced;" delete "or". There
bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 19, 2003



Nunber 1247

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report the CS for HB 120,

Version 23-LS0537\1, Ford, 3/19/03, as anended, out of commttee
wi th individual recomrendati ons and the acconpanying zero fisca

note. There being no objection, CSHB 120(L&C) was reported from
t he House Labor and Comrerce Standing Committee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:30 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 19, 2003



